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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERVICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330!
603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax: 603-271-5166 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

August 4, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term
Supports and Services, to amend an existing Sole Source contract with Community Action
Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc., (Vendor #177203), Concord, NH, for the
continued provision of Senior Companion Services, by increasing the price limitation by
$60,000 from $120,000 to $180,000 and by extending the completion date from September
30, 2020 to September 30, 2022 effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on October 26, 2016
(Item #16) and most recently amended with Governor and Council approval on October 3.
2018, (ltem#15A).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-9010-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO
LOCALS, VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2017
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $22,500 $0 $22,500

2018
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 ■  $30,000 $0 $30,000

2019
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $30,000 $0 $30,000

The Oeparlmcnl of Health and Human Scrvicen' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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2020
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2021
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $7,500 $22,500 $30,000

2022
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $0 $30,000 $30,000

2023
102-

500731
Contracts

for Prog Svc
48130404 $0 $7,500 $7,500

Total $120,000 $60,000 $180,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor is the only organization able to
provide the necessary services because the Contractor is the only sponsor and fiscal agent
for the Senior Companion Program in New Hampshire, primarily funded and regulated by the
Federal Corporation for National and Community Services. In accordance with RSA 161-
F:40, The Corporation for National and Community Service selected the Contractor as the
sole agency in New Hampshire to sponsor the Senior Volunteer Grant Program, and to
reimburse for covered expenses incurred by the Senior Companion Program, to the limit of
the appropriated funds

The purpose of this amendment is to continue providing Senior Companion Program
services to prevent institutionalization and to promote iridependence for vulnerable older
individuals by supporting older adults in maintaining independent community living.

Approximately 400 individuals will be served from October 1, 2020 to September 30,
2022.

The Senior Companion Program provides the opportunity for adults over 55 years of
age. who have income at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Level, to serve as
companions to older adults. Companions are matched with older adults who are homebound.
to provide supportive services. The companions benefit from participation in a rewarding and
worthwhile experience and the older individuals who are served benefit from regular
companionship and reduced isolation.

The Contractor must maintain compliance with the Senior Companion Program, as
established by the National Senior Corporation for National Community Services. The
Contractor must report contract activities to the Bureau on a quarterly basis, including but not
limited to:

•  The number of visits made;

•  The number of Clients served;

•  The number of Companions participating in the program; and

•  The number of hours Companions spent with clients.

Should the Governor and Council not approved this request, the Department will miss
an opportunity to provide companions to older adults who are homebound and in need of
supportive services. Without the Senior Companion Program, older adults in need of
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companion services may not tre able to maintain ttreir independence, wtiicti could result in an
increase of institutional sen/ices.

Area served: Belknap, Grafton, Hillsborough, Merrimack, Rockingham, Strafford and
Sullivan Counties

Source of Funds: 100% General funds.

Respectf i^lyeubm itted,

Lori ArShlbinette
Commissioner



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the Senior Companion Program Contract

This 2"® Amendment to the Senior Companion Program contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment
#2") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Community Action Program Belknap and
Merrimack Counties. Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation with a place of business at 2 Industrial Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302-1016.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 26, 2016, (Item # 16), as amended on October 3. 2018 (Item #15A). the Contractor agreed to
perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to
support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

September 30, 2022.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$180,000.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6, Subsection 6.2, to read;

6.2 Expenses shall be reported for reimbursement by budget line Item in Exhibit B-1
through Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2.

6. Modify Exhibit B-5, Budget by replacing in Its entirety with Exhibit B-5 Amendment #2, Budget,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Add Exhibit B-6 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Add Exhibit B-7 Amendment #2, Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Modify Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, V4. Last update 04.04.2018 by
replacing in its entirety with Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, V5. Last update
10/09/18, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

Community Action Program Belknap and Amendment #2 Contractor Initials
Merrimack Counties, Inc.

SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO-01-A02 Page 1 of 3 Date,E/ki



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

Ail terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this Amendment #2
remain In full force and effect. This amendment shall be upon the date of Governor and Executive Coundl
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date wrritten below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Date I  Name: Shiblrvcn-C
jfv^^itle: Co/WfAi

S//p/z
Date

Community Action Program Befknap and Menimack
Inc

Name:
Title:

Community Action Program BelJcnep end Amar>dfnent #2
Merrimftck Counties. Inc.

SS.2017'BEAS-01-SEN10-01-A02 Page 2 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

08/17/20
Date Name:

Titie: Catherine Pinos, Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Councii of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFiCE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Titie;

Community Action Program Belknap and Amendment #2
Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

SS-2017.BEAS-01 -SENIO-01 •A02 Page 3 of 3



CxMbtt B-S Amendm«nl f2

Budgit'

New Hampshire Department of HeaKh and Human Services

Bidder/Program Nant: CommunKy Action Pro^m Botknap-MorrSnack Countlea, Inc.

Budgat Raqunt for Senior Companion Program

Budget Pertod: July 1. 2020 through Jum 30. 2021

- ,Fundad try OHHScoraract (Tiar*-

Unattem

Tom SateryftVegea

Total Program Coat'
'Total

12.7d0.00 12.75000

.CorSraetor Share;Match

OlrKt mdlrecli -lOtroct ..

12.75000 12,790.00

2. Emploree Beneda veoo.oo veoo.oo i.eoo.oo t.000.00

3. ConMllenu

a. Eoiipmant

Repaif and Maintenance

Purcnata;Depredation

5. Suppte:

Lah

PtiarmacY
Medical

CMca

Ocgupency

100,00

a.500,00 6.50000 a.500 00

3. Current Expenaea

Telephone

Poatage B50 00

Subscripiiona

Auat ana Legal

Kiaurance

Board Expenaea

Software

to. MafkWinq/Cotnmunicationt

II. Staff Educalioo and Training
I?. SuocontfactVAgeanvjnta
13. Other (speoftc qwamr.afiOatcryT
Vokirweer Travel 6.000.00 6.00000 6.000.00 6.00000

3o.me.oo Tsms U.&U.U "mssm

Indirect As A Percent «f Direct

Community Action Program BeHmap-Memmack Counties. Inc.
Exrahtl B-5 Amendment *2

Page i o(i
SS.2017.0GAS-01-SCNIO-01-A02

Cortraoot^
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Budgti

New Hampshire Depsrtment of Hearth and Human Services

Bidder/Program Nun*: Communrty Action Program SalknapJitenlmack Counilas, he.

Budget Request (or: Seiior CofflparSort Program

Budgat Period: Jidy 1, 2021 througn June M. 2022

.'Funded try DHH3 coritract ebara

Indlract.
LIniRam

Total Satery/Wtoea

2. Employee Benetlts

Total Progrem i

iTotal

13.7SOOO

i.soo.ao

12.750.00

1.800.00

, Contractor.Shara / ItatcJi,

,-.T- -hoiract.' Total >OI(act. •I

1Z7SOOO
1.800.00

12.750.00
1.800.00

3, Consul terns

Equi
Rental

Repair and Maintenance
PufcfiasaDepretiatten

5. Suppllea:

Eoucaiionai

Lati

PttarmecY

7. Occupancy

a. Curreni Expenses

Tetepnone

Postaoe

Subacnpllorts

Auou and legal

Boara Expenses

9. SoCware

100.00

a.500.00

850.00

10. MarHetaiflTCommunicationa
11. Staff Educelionand Tralrang

12. Suocontracts/AoreemenB
13, OhefispecacOBiailstiwtnOaiorYT

Volunteer Travel

3ejioo.oo

6.000.00 s.ooooo S.000.00

■SBOTT
hdlract As A Percent of Direct O.OS

Communty Action Program Balimap-MenlmackCountiea. ho,
ExHOit 6-0 Amendmera >2
Page 1 <A 1
SS-2017-eEAS-01-SENlO-01-A02

Conirectors trdiiali.
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Budgat

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BlddarTProgrtm Name: Community Action Prtigram BeiknafhUerrtmack Countlea, Inc.

Budget Requwt (or Senior Companion Program

BudgM Period: July 1. 20Z2 through September 30. 2022

Funded by PHHScofdract ahary

UfwRein

Total Program Coei

.Direct .kvSract Toul

V contractor Share I Match

' Directi Dlrtct' Indirect " Totaj-

I. Tom sattfrWoBM

2. Emptoyee Boneia
3.197JO
450.00

3,197.60

450.00

3.197.60 3.197,50

450.00

3. Consiitants

I. Equipment:

Rental

Rapw ana Mawenance

PufchaseiOepfede'Jon

5. Suppdea:

PharmocT

Medici

Office

9. T.*»vW 3500 25.00 25.00

7. Ocagenof 2.125.00 2.125.00 2.125.00 2.125.00

9. Cunent Expen»e»

Telephone

Poatage 212.60 212.50

SiMcncKions

Audit ana legal

Insurenco

Board Eicpeniat

0. Software

10. MarkelinglCommuicatiorts
11. SiaH Educaaon and TraininQ

12, Sttektrects/Agreemanu
13. Oifter (apeiaftc eetaga maridattry):
VolurMer Traval tJOO.OO 1.50000 1.500.00

TOW yM6o7,500.00 TBSm
Mtrect As A PercanI bl Direct

Community Action Progmm Belknap^errtmack Counties, mc
ExhitMt 8-7 Amendmani '2

Page 1 of 1
SS-2017-BeAS4)1-SeNlO-01-Aa2

Contractoi's kiiaab.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also Includes any and all Information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
sen/ices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software^characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
of misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

V5. Last update 10/09/18 ExhiWl K Contractor Iriiti
DHHS Information

£A.

Page 1 of 9 Dale
Security Requirements



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network {designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 2 of 9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc.. without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V5 Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such "time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Stales. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in, a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All sen/ers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

V5 Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements LlJi n/*7.\
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems {or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination: and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5 Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor tnltl
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work vi/ith the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

Security Requiremerrts

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Page 6 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated vyith website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's. Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
OHHS InformationDHHS inrormation i ,

Security Requirements oJtrJ.^%
Page 7 of 9 Date^ZXi^l



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. ^

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING -

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents: and

vs. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, Identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, Wiiliam M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION
PROGRAM BELICNAP AND MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonpront Corporation registered

to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28.. 1965. i further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of
State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63021

Certificate Number: 0004877148

Op'
%

an.

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Community Action Program Belknap-Merriinack Counties, Inc.

CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Robert Krieeer Secretary-Clerk of Community Action Program Belknab-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. (hereinafter the ''Corporation"), aNew Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (I) I am the
duly elected and acting Secretary-Clerk of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have custody and am
familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) 1 am duly authorized to issue certificates with
respect to the contents of such books; (4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have
authorized, on 03/12/2020 such authority to be in force and effect until

(contract termination date)
(see attached)

The person(s) holding the below listed position(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of
the Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Jeanne Agri, Executive Director
Michael Tabory, Deputy Director

Steven E. Grcgoirc, Budget Analyst
Dennis Martino, President, Board of Directors

(5) The meeting of the Board of Directors was held in accordance with New Hampshire, (state of
incorporation) law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been
modified, amended or rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the dale hereof. Excerpt
of dated minutes or copy of article or section of authorizing by-law must be attached.

I have hereunto set my hand as the CIerk^ecretary^ the corporationIN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto se

this /O^ day of HaJiK j-

Secretary-Clerk

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

COUNTY OF MERRIMACK

On this day of . before me, .SurWk the undersigned
u

Officer, personally appeared Robert Krieeer who acknowledged himself to be the Secretary-

Clerk of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc., a corporation and that

she/he as such Secretary-Clerk being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the

purposes therein contained.

IN WinslESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

lotary Public/Justice of the Peace

Commission Expiration Date:
^  RAISES «.CUDAR,JuiS!»ol tie PttCS

i9r ooiMBiiesaR catfi sa, can



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

CORPORATE RESOLUTION

The Board of Directors of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc. authorizes the Executive Director, Deputy Director, Budget Analyst, Chief Accountant,
President, Vice-President(s) or Treasurer of the Agency to sign contracts and reports with the
Stale of New Hampshire, Departments of the Federal Government, which include all federal
#269 and #272 Forms, and public or private nonprofit agencies including, but not limited to, the
following:

- Department of Administrative Services for food distribution programs
- Department of Education for Nutrition programs
•  Department of Health and Human. Services

Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services for elderly programs
Bureau of Homeless and Housing Services for homeless/housing programs
Division of Children, Youth, and Families for child care programs
Division of Family Assistance for Community Services Block Grant
Division of Public Health Sersdces forptiblic health programs

•  Depailment of Justice for child advocacy/therapy programs
• Department of Transportation-Public transportation Bureau for transportation programs
•  Public Utilities Commission for utility assistance programs
• Workforce Opportunity Council for employment and job training programs
•  Department ofNatural and Cultural Resources
• New Hampshire Office of Strategic Initiatives (OSl) for Low Income Energy Assistance,

Weatherization, SEAS and Block Grant programs

• New Hampshire Community Development Finance Authority
• New Hampshire Housing Finance Autliority'
• New Hampshire Secretary of State
• U.S. Department ofHealth and Human Services
-  U.S. Department ofHousing and Urban Development
• U.S. Department oftheTreasury -Internal Revenue Service
•  and other departments and divisions as required

This Resolution authorizes the signing of all supplementary and subsidiary documents
necessary to executing the authorized contracts as well as any modifications or amendments
relative to said contracts or agreements.

This Resolution was approved by the Board of Directors of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. on March 12, 2020, and has not been amended or revoked
and remains in effect as of the date listed below.

lO -'-uD „ , . ,
Robert Kxieger
Secretary/Clerk

cpAI
Agcoc>' Cotponte Resolution 3/2020



/xdc^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMiOOrrYYV)

04/01/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDfcH. 1 HIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poiicyfies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or bo endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
thin rortifiratft Hrtfte not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsoment(s).

PRODUCEA

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester 03101

contact Karen Shaughnessy

(603)669-3218 (603)645-4331

^Snpr«<»' kshaughnessyeaossagancy.com
INSURERfSIAFFORDIKG COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A: Philadelphia ins Co

INSURED

Community Action Programs Belknap-Merrimack Counties Inc.
P. 0. Box 1016

Concord 03302

INSURER a - Granite Stale Health Care and Human Services Seif-
IN8URERC: Federal Ins Co 20281

INSURER D;

INSURER E :

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THATTHE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECTTO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES- LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY

"KTir
TYPEOF INSURANCE

[IDOC3D5R
wvo POLICY NUMBER

POUC* EFF
fMM/DO/YYYY|

WiLlciVeTfP
fMM/OO/VYYYI

iliSB

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

OCCURCLAIMS-MADE X

CEN'tAGGReCATe LIMIT APPLIES PER:

X POLICY □ JE^ □ LOCPOLICY

OT>ieR;

AUTOMOBLE UABILITY

ANY AUTOX

X

OVWED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA L1AQ

EXCESS UAO

DEO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABILITY
ANY PROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECimvE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory ir) NH)
If yai. OaaenM undar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bfikiw

T IN

0

Directors & Officers Liebility

PHPK2041343

PHPK2041342

PHU86g46S2

HCHS202000000ie5 {3a.) NH

82471794

10/01/2019

10/01/2019

10/01/2019

02/01/2020

04/01/2020

10/01/2020

10/01/2020

10/01/2020

02/01/2021

04/01/2021

EACH OCCURRENCE
■DraKcrmtEmnr
pnPuisES I

MED EXP tAnv on« waonl

PERSONAL S AOV INJURY

QGNERALAOGREOATE

PROOUCTS - CCMPfCP AGO

COM61N ED SI NCLE UMlf
re a tc^eoil

BODILY INJURY (Par paruin)

BODILY INJURY (Par acddoill)
PROPER fY DAMAGE
fPar BoeldBntl

Urrinsured rrrolorist

EACH OCCURRENCE

X PER
sTATirrF

OTH-
.£S_

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.i.. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L DISEASE - POUCY LIMIT

Limit

Deductible

1,000.000

100.000

5.COO

1.000,000

3.000,000

3,000,000

1,000.000

1.000,000

5.000.000

5,000.000

1.000.000

1,000,000

1,000,000

$1,000,000

$5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Addlllonil Ramariia Sehaifcila, may ba atUchad U mara apaea la raqulrad)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

State of New Hampshire; Department of
Health & Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
i

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

m HOM-en-ip; ACfiRn CORPORATION. All riahts reserved.

ACORO 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstered'marks of ACORD



Phone (603) 225-3295
(800) 856-5525
Fax (603) 228-1898
Web www.bm-cap.org

o

o
o

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.
EmOOwEOINQ communities since 19SS

2 Industrial Park Drive

P.O. Box 1016

Concord, NH

03302-1016

COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM

BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES, INC.

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

The puipose the corporation includes providing assistance for the reduction of
poverty, the revitalization of low-income communities, and the empowerment of
low-income families and individuals to become fully self-sufficient through

planning and coordinating the use of abroad range of federal, stale, local, and other
assistance (including private resources) related to the elimination of poverty; the
organization of a range of services related to the needs of low-income families and
individuals, so that these services may have a measurable and potentially major
impact on the causes of poverty and may help the families and individuals to
achieve self-sufficiency; the ma.\imum participation of residents of the low-income

communities and members of the groups served to empower such residents and
members to respond to the unique problems and needs within their communities;
and to secure a more active role in the provision of services for private, religious,
charitable, and neighborhood-based organizations, individual citizens, and
business, labor, and professional groups, vvho are able to iafluence the quantity and
quality of opportunities and services for the poor.

(Approved by Agency Board of Directors on 02/24/05
as part of the Agency Bylaws.)
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CERTirirO PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

VOLFCBORO • NORTH CONUTW

DOVER • CONCORDTo the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. siRAimM
Concord, New Hampshire

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of
financial position as of February 28, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of activities,
functional expenses and cash flows, and notes to the financial statements for the years then
ended.

Mansaement's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States:
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. as of
February 28. 2019 and 2018, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the
years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Other information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reoortiha Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 16, 2020, on our consideration of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack
Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP . MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Investments

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land, buildings and improvements
Equipment, furniture and vehicles

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Due from related parly

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of notes payable
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

Total current liabilities

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Notes payable, less current portion shown above

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without Donor Restrictions

With Donor Restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Notes to Financial Statements

3

2019

$  1,411,762
2,321,041

22,800
52,632
102,522

3,910,757

4.749,673
5,979.320

10.728.993

6,330.580

4,398.413

139,441

139,441

183,269

1.069.165
1,066,748
998,332

3.317,514

781,385

4,098.899

3,842,297
507,415

4,349,712

2018

$  1,751,685
2,993,405

26,567

88,287
98,753

4,958,697

4,634.220
6,227,722

10,861,942

6,936,808

3,925,134

139,441

139,441

$  '8,448,611 $ 9,023,272

$  172,745
1,443,697

1.056,676
1,187,333

3,860.451

962.781

4,823,232

3,497.187
702,853

4,200,040

$ 8.448,611 S 9.023.272



COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKfjAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Without Donor

Restrictions

19,205.554

4,706,408

829,464
18.227

24,759,653

364,684

25,124.337

8,905,642

2,428,774

324,491

1,310,477

8,941,429

1,707,999

330,491
829,924

24.779,227

345,110

3,497.187

3,842,297

With Donor

Restrictions

169,246

169,246

(364,684)

(195,438)

(195,438)

702.853

2019

Total

$  19,205,554
4,875,654
829,464
18,227

24,928,899

24,928,899

8,905,642
2.428,774

324.491

1,310,477

8,941.429

1,707,999
330,491
829.924

24.779,227

149,672

4,200.040

$  507,415 $ 4.349,712

Sec Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIFfi. IMC

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBlRUARY 28. 2018

Without Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Reistrictions

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant awards

Other funds

In-kind

United Way

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total

EXPENSES

Salaries and wages ^
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program services
Other costs

Depreciation
In-kind

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

17,935.847 $
1.538.501

1.147,970
30,517

2.870,131

2018

Total

$  17,935,847
4.408,632

1,147.978

20,652,843 2,870,131 23,522,974

2.811.389 (2,811.389)

23,464,232 58,742 23,522,974

8,295,198 8,295,198
2.054.965 - 2,054,965
281,239 - 281,239

1,222,773 - 1,222,773
7,979,371 - 7,979,371

1,636,269 - 1,636,269
236,706 . 236,706

1,147.978 - 1,147,978

22,854.499 22,854,499

609,733 58,742 668,475

2,887.454 644,111 3,531,565

S  3.497,187 $  702,853 $  4,200,040

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COIVIIVIUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Decrease (increase) in current assets:
.  Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Decrease (increase) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to properly
Investment in partnership

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term debt

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

CASH BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH BALANCE, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for Interest

2019

149.672

330,491

672.364
3.767

35,655

(374,532)
10,072

(189,001)

638,468

(803,770)
(3.769)

(807.539)

(170,872)

(170,872)

(339,923)

1.751.685

$  1,411,762

63.133

2018

668,475

236,706

(831.433)
(5.037)
6.028

595,990

37.250
28,002

735,981

(523,729)
(13,528)

(537.257)

(179,383)

(179,383)

19,341

1.732.344

$ 1.751.685

$ 73.582

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

Salaries and wages
Payroll taxes and benefits
Travel

Occupancy
Program Services
Other costs:

Accounting fees

Legal fees
Supplies
Postage and shipping
Equipment rental and maintenance
Printing and publications
Conferences, conventions and meetings
Interest

Insurance

Membership fees
Utility and maintenance
Computer services
Other

Depreciation
In-kind

Total functional expenses

Proaram Manaaement Total

£  8,682.073 S 223,569 $ 8.905,642

2,320.432 108,342 2,428,774

323,333 1,158 324,491

1,293,439 17,038 1,310,477

8.941.429 • 8,941.429

♦ 57,892 57,892
19,554 3,520 23,074

284,548 - 284,548

53,134 - 53,134

2,208 - 2.208

45,786 3.732 49,518

22,840 27,848 50,688

46,478 16,655 63,133

143,136 6.760 149,896

9,891 9,093 18.984

214,214 - 214,214

37,562 1,304 38,866

701',232 612 701,844

330,491 - 330,491
829,924 - 829.924

S  24,301,704 $ 477,523 $ 24.779.227

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP - MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2018

Proqram Manaoement Total

Salaries and wages £  8,026,291 $ 268,907 $ 8,295,198
Payroll taxes and benefits 1,948.839 106,126 2,054,965
Travel 279,829 1,410 281,239

Occupancy 1,107,004 115,769 1,222,773
Program Services 7,979,371 - 7,979,371

Other costs:

Accounting fees 24,915 27,549 52,464

Legal fees 5.137 - 5,137

Supplies 236,553 26,718 263,271

Postage and shipping 49,153 1,052 50,205

Equipment rental and maintenance 1,680 - 1,680

Printing and publications 3,643 27,649 31,292
Conferences, conventions and meetings 13,730 9,544 23,274

Interest 68,274 5,308 73,582

Insurance 123,457 35,257 158,714

Membership fees 19,045 8,668 27.713

Utility and maintenance 185.882 64,390 250,272

Computer services 21,517 17,179 38,696

Other 645,081 14,888 659,969

Depreciation 231,959 4,747 236,706
In-kind 1.147,978 - 1,147,978

Total functional expenses S 22.119,338 ■ $ 735,161 $ 22,854,499

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAIVI BELKNAP - tVlERRIIVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019 AND 2018

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization

Community Action Program Belknap - Merrimack Counties, Inc. (the Organization) is a
New Hampshire nonprofit organization that serves nutritional, health, living and support
needs of the low income and elderly clients in the two county service areas, as well as
state wide. These services are provided with the financial support of various federal,
state, county and local organizations.

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In the
United State of America.

New Accounting Pronouncement

On August 18, 2016, PASS Issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic - 958) -
Presentatiori of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses
the complexity, and understandability of net asset classification, deficiencies in
information about liquidity and availability of resources, and the lack of consistency in
the type of information provided about expenses and investment return. The
Organization has presented these statements accordingly. The ASU has been applied
-retrospectively to all periods presented.

Financial Statement Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, which require the Organization to report
information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets that are not

subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any
purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These
net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's
management and board of directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stipulations imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are
temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in
perpetuity.



Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor
restrictions. When restrictions expire, net assets are redassified from net assets with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.
The Organization had net assets with donor restrictions of $507,415 and $702,853 at
February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively. See Note 13.

Income Taxes

The Organization is organized as a nonprofit corporation and is exempt from federal
income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3). The Internal Revenue
Service has determined them to be other than a private foundation.

The Organization files information returns in the United States and the State of New
Hampshire. The Organization is no longer subject to examinations by tax authorities for
years before 2015.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740 (ASC 740), Accounting for Income Taxes,
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring, the
benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. The Organization has analyzed
its tax position taken on Its information returns for the years (2016 through 2019), and
has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is necessary in the
Organization's financial statements.

Property

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value
at the date of the donation. Assets purchased with a useful life in excess of one year
and exceeding $5,000 are capitalized unless a lower threshold is required by certain
funding sources. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets as follows;

Buildings and improvements 40 years
Equipment, furniture and vehicles 3-7 years

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to rhake estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Gash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at
times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risk with
respect to these accounts.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC No.
958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the services (a)
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create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized skills, and would
otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under FASB ASC
No. 958 were not met.

In-Kind Donations I Noncash Transactions
Donated facilities, services and supplies are reflected as revenue and expense-in the
accompanying financial statements, if the criteria for recognition is met. This represents
the estimated fair value for the service, supplies and space that the Orqanization might
incur under normal operating activities. The Organization received $829,924 and
$1.147,978 in donated facilities, services and supplies for the years ended February 28,
2019 and 2018, respectively, as follows:

The Organization receives contributed professional services that are required to be
recorded in accordance with FAS.B ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of these
services was determined to be $35,519 and $292,141 for the years ended February 28.
2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Organization also receives contributed food commpdities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No.-958. The estimated fair
value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $793,945 and
$846,237 for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, the difference between amounts paid for the
use of the facilities and the fair market value of the rental space has been recorded as
an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in the accompanying financial
statements. The estimated fair value of the donation was determined to be $9,600 for
the year ended February 28. 2018. There was no donation for the year ended February
28. 2019.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended February 28. 2019 and 2018 totaled $54,461 and $32,655,
respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists of weatherization supplies and work in process and is valued at the
lower of cost or net realizable value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been presented in
the Statements of Functional Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the program services and supporting activities benefited. Expenses are charged
to each, program based on the direct expenses incurred or estimated usage based on
time spent on each program by staff.

Expense Method of allocation

Wages and benefits Time and effort
Depreciation Actual assets used by program
All other expenses Direct assignment

11



2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization's financial assets as of February 28, 2019
and 2018:

2019 2018

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents, undesignated $ 1,411,762 $ 1,751,685
Accounts receivable 2,321,041 2,993,405
Investments 102,522 98,753
Line of credit available 200.000 200.000

Total financial assets 4.035.325 5.043.843

Less amounts not available to be used within
one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions 507,415 702,853
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year - -

Amounts not available within one year 507.415 702.853

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months S 3.527:910 S 4.340.990

It is the Organization's goal to maintain financial assets to meet 60 days of operating
expenses which approximates $3,880,000 and $3,530,000 respectively, at February 28,
2019 and 2018.

3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after management
has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts

was estimated to be zero at February 28, 2019 and 2018. The Organization has no
policy for charging interest on overdue accounts.

4. REFUNDABLE ADVANCES

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized as
revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are performed or
incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met aggregated
$998,332 and $1,187,333 as of February 28. 2019 and 2018, respectively.

5. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization has a qualified contributory pension plan which covers substantially all
employees.- The cost of the plan is charged to programs administered by the
Organization. The expense of the plan for the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018
totaled $184,961 and $202,725, respectively.
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6. LEASED FACILITIES

Facilities occupied by the Organization for its community service programs are leased
under various operating leases. The lease terms range from month to month to twenty
years. For the year ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, the annual lease expense for
the leased facilities was $480,258 and $479,964. respectively.

The approximate future minimum lease payments on the above leases are as follows:

Year Ended

February 28 Amount

2020 $  468,715
2021 368.835
2022 104,206
2023 103,206
2024 103,206

Thereafter 972.603

Total S 1120.771

7. ACCRUED EARNED TIME

The Organization has accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its employees
have earned and vested with the employees in the amount of $377,163 and $369,827 at
February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

8. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization has a $200,000 revolving line of credit agreement (the line) with a
bank that is due on demand. The line calls for monthly variable interest payments
based on the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (5.50% and 4.50% at February 28, 2019
and 2018, respectively) plus 1%, but not less than 6% per annum. The line is secured
by all the Organization's assets. There was no outstanding balance on the line at
February 28, 2019 and 2018.

9. LONG TERM DEBT

Long term debt consisted of the following as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

5.75% note payable to a financial institution in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$13,912 through July 2023, The note is secured by
property of the Organization for Lakes Region Family
Center. $ 649.372 $ 773,551

13



3.00% note payable to the City of Concord for
leasehold improvements in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $747 through May 2027. The
note is secured by property of the Organization for the
agency administrative building renovations. 64,943 71,843

7.00% note payable to a bank in monthly installments
for principal and interest of $4,842 through May 2023.
The note is secured by a first real estate mortgage
and assignment of rents and leases on property
located in Concord, New Hampshire for Early Head
Start. 250.339 290.132

Total 964.654 1,135,526
Less amounts due within one year 183.269 172.745

Long term portion S 781.385 S 962.781

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt as of February 28, 2019 were as follows:

Year Ending
February 28 Amount

2020 $ 183.269
2021 194,445
2022 206,317
2023 218,926
2024 133,205

Thereafter 28.492

S  964.654

10. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

Land $ 168.676 $ 168,676
Building and improvements 4,580,996 4,465,544
Equipment and vehicles 5.979.321 6.227.722

10,728,993 10,861,942
Less accumulated depreciation 6.330.580 6.936.808

Property and equipment, net $ 4.398.413 $ 3.925.134

Depreciation expense for the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018 was $330,491
and $236,706, respectively.
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11. CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of these
agreements, the Organization is required to use the funds within a certain period and for
purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures were found
not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations, the Organization
might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined or assessed
as of February 28, 2019.

During the year ended February 28. 2018, the Corporation for National and Community
Service (CNGS) conducted a monitoring of its program and found that the Organization
was not In full compliance with the program requirements. As a result, CNGS
disallowed $37,000 of grant expenditures. The Organization returned the funds in full
during April 2018.

12. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

For the years ended February 28, 2019 and 2018, approximately $12,000,000 (48%)
'  and $11,000,000 (47%), respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received

from the Department of Health and Human Services. The future scale and nature of the
Organization is dependent upon continued support from this department.

13. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following specific program
services as of February 28, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018

NH Food Pantry Coalition
Senior Center

Elder Services

NH Rotary Food Challenge '
Common Pantry
Caring Fund
Agency - FAP
Agency Head Start
Other Programs

Total net assets with donor restrictions

$ 663 $ 663

137,743 127.746
200.912 390,089

5,068 5,068
5,534 5,912

11,811 14,272
6,342 14,746

137,967 140,979
1.375 3.378

$ 507.415 $ 702.853
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14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization is related to the following corporation as a result of common
management:

Related Party

CAPBMC Development Corporation

Function

Real Estate Development

There was $139,441 due from CAPBMC Development Corporation at both February 28,
2019 and 2018.

The Organization serves as the management agent for the following organizations:

Related Party Function

Beimont Elderly Housing, Inc.
Epsom Elderly Housing, Inc.
Alton Housing for the Elderly. Inc.
Pembroke Housing for the Elderly, Inc.
Newbury Elderly Housing, Inc.
Kearsarge Elderly Housing. Inc.
Riverside Housing.Corporation
Sandy Ledge Limited Partnership

Twin Rivers Community Corporation
Ozanam Place, Inc.

TRCC Housing Limited Partnership I

HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
HUD Property
Low Income Housing Tax

Credit Property
property Development
Transitional Supportive

Services

Low Income Housing Tax
Credit Property

The services performed by the Organization included, marketing, accounting, tenant
selection (for the HUD properties). HUD compliance (for the HUD properties), and
maintenance of property.

The total amount due from the related parties (collectively) at February 28, 2019 and
2018 was $185,937 and $114,032, respectively and is included in accounts receivables.

15, RECLASSIFICATION

Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year financial statements have been
reclassified to enhance the comparability with the presentation of the current year.

16. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has also invested money
relating to its Fix-it program in certain mutual funds. The fair value of the mutual funds
totaled $101,522 and $97,753 at February 28, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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ASC Topic No. 825-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair value w/hich
focuses on an exit price rather than an entry price, establishes a framework In generally
accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value which emphasizes that fair value is
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and requires
expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. In accordance with FASB ASC 820,
the Organization may use valuation techniques consistent with market, income and cost
approaches to measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, FASB ASC 820 establishes a fair value
hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives
the highest priority to l.evel 1 measurements and the lowest priority to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are
described as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active markets, which are either directly or indirectly obsen/able as
of the reporting date, and fair value can be determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies.

' Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable inputs in
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability
and the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the
pricing of the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

At February 28, 2019 and 2018, the Organization's investments were classified as Level 1
and were based on fair value.

Fair Value IVIeasurerhents using Significant Observable Inputs (Level 1)

2019 2018

Beginning balance - mutual funds $ 97,753 $ 84,225
Total gains (losses) - mutual funds 3,769 9,528
Purchases . - 4.000

Ending balance - mutual funds $ 101.522 $ 97.753

The carrying amount of cash, current assets, other assets and current liabilities,
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.

The Organization also has $1,000 invested in a Partnership. The Lakes Region
Partnership for Public Health, at February 28, 2019 and 2018.
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17. FISCAL AGENT

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. acts as the fiscal agent
for the following community organizations: Franklin Community Services Building
(Franklin), the Common Pantry (Laconia), the Caring Fund (Meredith), the NH Food
Pantry Coalition, the NH Rotary Food Challenge and FGP/SCP Association Region 1.
The Agency provides the management and oversight of the revenues received
(donations) and the expenses (utilities, food and emergency services).

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of financial
position date, but before the financial statements are available to be issued. Recognized
subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about
conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date, including the
estimates Inherent In the process of preparing financial statements. Non-recognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist
at the statement of financial position date, but arose after that date. Management has
evaluated subsequent events through January 16, 2020, the date the financial
statements were available to be Issued.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

(See Independent Auditors' Report)
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COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM BELKNAP-MERRIMACK COUNTIES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended February 28. 2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Community Action Program
Belknap-Merhmack Counties, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes In net assets, or cash flows of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the
Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. has elected not to
use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD COMMODITIES AND VEHICLES

Nonmonetary assistance is reported' in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodrties received and disbursed.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belkn'ap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of February 28, 2019 and
2018, and the related statements of activities, cash flows, and functional expenses for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 16, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the' effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a.combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. We did Identify
a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 2019-001 that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Program
Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s financial statements are free from material misstatement,
we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or
other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication Is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH

MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.
Concord. New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance
with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended February 28, 2019.
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, Issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the
Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Community Action Program Belknap-
Merrimack Counties, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. complied, in all
material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended February
28, 2019.

Report on Internaf Control Over Compliance

Management of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. is responsible
for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties,
Inc.'s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of intemal control over compliance and theVesults of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Concord, New Hampshire
January 16, 2020
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COiVlMUNITY ACTION PRQGRAIVI BELKNAP-MERRliVIACK COUNTIES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEBRUARY 28. 2019

SUIVIIVIARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial statements
of Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. were prepared In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2. One material weakness relating to the audit of the financial statements is reported in the
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community Action
Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.. which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
On Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all
major programs.

6. TTiere were no audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR
section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major programs include:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Low Income Home Energy Assistance
Prograrn 93.568, Aging Cluster,93.044, 93.045 and 93.053, Social Services Block Grant
93.667; U.S. Department of Agriculture. Women, Infants and Children 10.557, U.S.
Department of Transportation, Formula Grants for Rural Areas 20.509, Enhanced
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities 20.513.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc. was determined to not be a
low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MATERIAL WEAKNESS

2019-001

Condition: The financial statements presented to the auditor at the beginning of
fieldwork understated net income by a material amount. This was primarily the result of
improper cut off due to revenue related to the fiscal year under audit being recorded to the
subsequent period.

Cn'teria: The Organization's internal control procedures should be structured so that
accounts are reconciled and reviewed on a timely basis and a review is completed prior to
closing the financial records for the year.

Cause: The Organization lost staff and their accumulated knowledge of Fiscal
Department processes and procedures. This led to general ledger entries being posted late
or mis-posted.

Effect: Significant adjusting journal entries were proposed by the auditor to ensure
accurate revenue cut off for the period under audit. Additionally, the auditor proposed a
significant adjusting entry to reduce expenses as a result of workers' compensation
insurance expenses being over-accrued.

Recommendations: The auditors recommend that the Organization implement
procedures so that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed by management
on a monthly basts. Further, the auditors recommend that the financial closing process be
simplified and include a review of all significant balance sheet and profiland loss accounts.

Views of Responsible Officials: Staff turnover and short staffing resulted in the errors
leading to this finding. Agency Officials recognize the need to ensure the presence of
qualified staff for operational continuity. The Organization will implement procedures so
that balance sheet accounts are reconciled and reviewed ,by management on a monthly
basis. The Director of Finance will also develop procedures to produce financial reports on
a periodic basis.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Jeanne Am

PROFESSIONAL PROFn^E

Versatile and experienced leader witli highly developed communication skills; written, verbal and presentational. Adept
in coaching and mentoring empioyccs aitd colleagties as evidenced by my selcctioo by the National Office of Head Start to
serve as a mentor for new Head Start Directors. Committed to continuous unprovement of activities to ensure tJiey meet
outcomes approved by the board through strategic planning, creating goal-oriented systems and conformance with all
local, state and federal guidance.

WORK EXPERIENCE

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Concord, NH
Executive Director 2018-present

•  Assures the organization has long-range strategy which makes consistent and timely progress towards meeting
tlie Agencies overall mission ^

»  Responsible for the general supervision of all grant awards, ensuring that all statutory, regulatory, and /or
program and financial requirements are met, that generally accepted accounting principles are applied, and
that all program and financial policies and procedures are adhered to.

■  Provide leadership in developing programs, organizational structures and financial systems that carry out the
instructions and policies authorized by the Board

•  Establish sound working relationships and cooperative arrangements with community groups, organizations
and all funding sources important to the development of the agency and programs.

•  See that the Board Director is kept fully informed and up to date on the condition of the organization and all
important Federal, State or local Requirements impacting on the Agency and/or its programs.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester, NH
Education and Nutrition Operations Director 2016 - 2018

•  Coordinate, manage and monitor workings of Child Development, Women Infant and Children, and
Literacy Programs, as well as development of an agency wide Two-Generational Approach to services

•  Formulate, improve and implement departmental and organizational policies and procedures to
maximize output. Monitor adherence to rules, regulations, and procedures

•  Assist in the recruitment and placement of required staff; establishment of organizational structure;
delegation of tasks and accountabilities

■  Supervise staff, including establishment of work schedules and monitoring and evaluating performance in
partnership with Executive Director
Assist in development of strategic plans for operational activity; implement and manage operational

Director of Child Development Programs 2001-2016
■  Hire, coach and evaluate the performance of Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators, Center

Directors, Teachers and Head Start support staff
•  Provide coaching, and learning opportunities for al! employees focused on promoting, supporting and

improving early development of children from the prenatal stage to five years of age using research -
based practices

•  Plan and implement strategic interventions with Program Managers, Specialists, Coordinators and
Center Directors for sites needing administrative support and direction

•  Plan, coordinate and facilitate regular leadership meetings for evaluating and strengthening systems to
maintain the highest quality of services in compliance with Head Start Performance Standards

•  Develop internal structures, systems, and policies supporting major content areas of Head Start program
including education, health, mental health, social services, parent involvement, nutrition, disabilities , and
transpoitation



SUZANNE L. SINGER, MBA

Director of Business Development

Growth Catalyst - Powerful Sales Strategist - Market Expansion
Top-performing Business Development & Sales Director who builds high-performance

sales teams to develop new markets resulting in higher-margin sales
Consistent Revenue Growth - Valued Mentor & Leader

Business Development strategist who builds strong, dedicated client relationships and partnerships that are built
on trust. Executive with an entrepreneurial spirit who leads companies to growth and market differentiation with
a record of generating new business opportunities and developing lucrative partnerships. Proven track record of
implementing the necessao' business development strategies to accomplish breakthrough sales objectives while
creating unique market-entry strategies, managing business relationships, building credibility, and establishing
immediate rapport with potential clients.

Contract Negotiations Strategic Planning Market Penetration
Business Leadership Account Management Strategic Alliances
Cross-Functional Leadership Market Expansion Resource Management

Executive Highlights

-Led sales efforts and cultivated business relationships to drive 30%-40®/o new client revenue annually, with
emphasis on creative marketing strategies and rebranding services.
-Trusted and highly-respected Sales Management leader and Mentor during change management resulting in
company growth of $2-miIlion.

Executive Performance

Community Action Program-Belknap-Meirimack County
Director of Elder Services (2018-present)

Scott Farrar at Peterborough (2016-2018)
MARKETING DIRECTOR
Manage Market Sales process of the community to achieve and maintainlOO% occupancy for the community. Managed internal and
external events and trainings. Organized and attended networking opportunities building a strong reputation.

American Red Cross, Massachusetts {2015- 2016)

District Manager

Led a team of 10 Account Managers to achieve second place in the Nation for Blood Collection for 2015 with
Operating efficiency of 95%. Recruited to lead sales and drive accelerated growth ofRed Cross blood services
donor recruitment while managing 10 staff in two offices; increased advisor appointment ratios from 0.9% to
2% and sales conversion ratio from.1.5% to 3% by communicating sales opportunities and coaching advisor
on marketing best practices. Researched market penetration and viability, developed strategies and coinciding
reports to track results; trends, profitability, and areas of opportunity, then adjusted strategies as needed.
Developed and led monthly meetings with COO, CEO and Executive Directors to build One Red Cross
brand.



Suzanne L. Singer | P a g e 2

Workshops, Training, and Seminars

Created training module for on boarding Red Cross employees with vision of One Red Cross

Staff Trainer and safety officer; train and retrain staff to maintain a safe work environment reduce injury
Ethic's officer in Long Term, Assisted Living and Residential program
Developed client orientated operations manual with detailed staff functions

Staff Trainer for Self Determination in focused area of Developmental Disability, Elderly and Traumatic
Brain Injury

Staff trainer of Learning Styles with staff- increase connectivity with clients and co-worker

EDUCATION

Master of Business Administration, 2001

Franklin Pierce University, NH

Bachelor OF Science, 1995

Keene State College, NH

AssocuTE Degree Chemical Dependency1995

Keene State College, NH

AFFILIATIONS

Board of Directors Red Cross NH/VT 2017-Present

Red Cross Bio-Med Chair 2GI7-Present

Chamber of Commerce Peterborough/Jaffrey/Rindge 2016-Present
Peterborough Woman's Club 2017-Present

Eastern Star 2015 "

Children's Friends, 2014-2016

Monadnock At Home 2011-2013

Board of Directors: New Hampshire Dance Institute 2006-2008
Grand Circle Community Resource Team 2002-2003



Kathleen Stuart

Objective-To secure a position in which I can explore and build expenence/skilis.

Qualifications-I have over 15 years of management experience in the field of human services. My experience includes
working with various adult populations.

Work Historv

January 2016-Present

Program Coordinator-Senior Companion Program of New Hampshire
•  Provide oversight of 40 volunteers over the age of 55.
.  Schedule and facilitate in home introductory visits and assignment plans with volunteers and frail, homebound

seniors

Coordinate monthly inservices and annual volunteer appreciation events
Recruit, enroll and train volunteers in Hillsborough County and the Seacoast region
Process biweekly timesheets (volunteers are stipended) for volunteers

February 2015-January 2016

Assisted Living Manager, Brightvlew Senior Living Billerica. MA
Provide oversight of over 20 Certified Nurse Assistants
Responsible for scheduling,completion of service plans, OA, ALFA and MA regulation compliance.

December 2009-January 2015 Easter Seals NH Care Coordinator,
Caring Companions

•  Administrative oversight of 20 or so staff providing in home services to the elderly, chronically ill and disabled.
Maintenance of records for a caseload of over 90 consumers-
Intake, assessment and care plan development for over 90 consumers.

Recruitment, hiring, training and supervision of staff providing In home services.

April 2006-December 2009 Easter Seals NH
Family Resource Worker/Recruiter. Harbor Schools (left due to company dissolution)

Recruitment of foster parents to provide homes to emotionally troubled kids.
Completion of all state regulated assessments in the licensure of prospective foster homes.
Coordination of annual foster parent appreciation events and quarterly newsletter for foster parents.

-  Conducted quarterly, state regulated MAPP training to foster parents for licensure.

August 2004-2007

Program Manager. North Suffolk Mental Health Inc.
Managed a group home fordevelopmentally disabled men.

•  Completed all JSP's, trained staff in the implementation of behavior plans and maintained the health and safety of
all residents.

Complied with dietary, budgetary and behavioral methods necessary.

Education

Southern Connecticut State University

Conferred January 2002 with Departmental Honors BA Mental Health
Psychology CPA 3.84

Awards

Recipient of the SCSU Service Award 2001
Recipient of the National Italian American Foundation Scholarship Recipient of the Henry
Barnard Distinguished Student Award Recipient of the State of Connecticut Distinguished
Student Award Recipient of SCSU Alumni Scholarship
Nominated for the Who's Who Among College Students Award President of the SCSU
CIAO Italian Club



Michele Cronin Lapierre

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS: , • , ^
Dedicated worker with responsibility for recruiting, training, supervising and retaining a team. Proven analytical and
strategic thinker having researched and recommended action plans for hundreds of beneficiaries. Passionate advocate,
having created and developed marketing materials to ensure successful outcomes.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE: « n »

Community Action Program- Belknap & Merrimack Counties, Inc., Concord, NH 03302 July 2018- Present
Program Manager of Senior Companion Program: As Program Manager, responsible for the daily

management of the Senior Companion Program. Actively Involved with community organizations, volunteers, and
volunteer stations, the representative of the sponsor in signing and approving official project documentation, including
project reports, memoranda of understanding, and/or letters of agreement for in-home assignments.
•  Plan and develop all phases of SCP operations; Ensure national service National Service Criminal History Check

are completed for all covered staff and volunteers in accordance with CNCS requirements and agency policy;
Assist with hiring, training, and supen/ising adequate staff to efficiently carry out, maintain and develop
operations of the Senior Companion Program; Provide support, information and materials for coordinators and
appraise staff performance. Recruit, select, orient and place volunteers with volunteer stations; Develop and
maintain appropriate fiscal, personnel, program and volunteer records and reports;

.  Enhance the total efforts of SCP through active involvement with community organizations, other national
service programs, where appropriate; Implement agreed upon performance measure and other FGP/SCP grant
requirements; Keep Senior Corps Advisory Council members informed and solicit their participation and advice
on matters affecting program operations;

. Work in cooperation with CAP Non-Profit staff. Advisory Council members and volunteer station'staff to obtain
resources for programs; Plan, develop, and implement ongoing public relations opportunities, including social
media, in cooperation with CAP; Arrange for formal and regular recognition of volunteers, organizations and
Individuals who have contributed to the support of SCP;

•  Assure volunteer orientation, in conjunction with volunteer work stations and staff; In conjunction with SCP
staff develop and maintain close coordination and relationships with volunteer stations, including development
of volunteer assignment plans; Provide ongoing support to volunteers; In conjunction with SCP staff, appraise
volunteer performance; Assess appropriateness and/or performance of volunteer stations; Attend training
conferences conducted or authorized

Goodwill Industries NNE, Manchester, NH 03103 September 2016-March 2018
Intake Specialist/ Career Advisor, Job Connection: Assist with the facilitation of supports and services

that promote greater independence and skill development.
.  Perform assessment of individuals via need for change and intake with Families in Transition participants to

determine skills, needs and goals for employment.
•  Assist participants with State, Federal and local benefit issues. Provide support with applications,

redetermihations and referral.

•  Refer to outside agencies or within Job Connection to achieve desired goats. Utilize grants, participant funds,
vouchers and other means to help participants with financial hurdles.

•  Complete data entry, update spreadsheets and accurately record participant information.



CONTRACTOR NAME

K.ev Personnel

Nanie Job Title Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Jeanne Agri Executive Director $140,639 0% 0.00

Suzanne Demers Director of Elder Services $69,518 0% 0.00

Michele Lapierre SCP Program Manager $42,744 11% $4,778

Kathleen Stuart SCP Coordinator $35,646 11% $3,986

T/B/D SCP Coordinator $35,646 11% $3,986
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPOR TS AND SER VICES

BUREAU OF ELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

t05 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD. NH 03301-3587
603-271-9203 I-800-35M888

Fax; 603-27M643 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

September 10, 2018

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports and
Services. Bureau of Elderly & Adult Services, to retroactively exercise a renewal option and amend an
existing sole source agreement with Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties,
Inc., (Vendor #177203). 2 Industrial Park Drive. Concord, NH 03302, to continue to provide Senior
Companion Services, by increasing the price limitation by $60,000 from $60,000 to $120,000, and

■extending the completion date from September 30, 2018 to September 30. 2020, effective upon the
date of Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% General Funds.

The original agreement was approved by Governor and Executive Council on October 26, 2016
(Item #16).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2019, and are expected
to be available in SFY 2020 and SFY 2021, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds
with the authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years through the Budget Office without further approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-48-481010-9010 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS.
HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

state
Fiscal
Year

Class 1
Account

Class Title

Current
Modified
Budget

Increased
(Decreased)
/Amount
/

Revised
Modified
Budget

2017 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svcs $22,500.00 $0.00 $22,500,00

2018 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $30,000.00 $0.00 $30,000.00

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $7,500.00 $22,500.00 $30,000.00

2020 102-500731 Conlracts for Proq Svcs $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Proq Svcs $0.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00
$60,000.00 $60,000.00 $120,000.00



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to the fully executed contract documentation were not received
with enough time to meet the September 19. 2018 Governor and Executive Council meeting.

The request is sole source as Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties,
Inc., is the only sponsor and fiscal agent for the Senior Companion Program in New Hampshire,
prirnarily funded and regulated by the Federal Corporation for National and Community Services to
provide this program. The Corporation for National and Community Service has selected the
Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties, Inc., as the sole agency in New
Hampshire "to sponsor the Senior Volunteer Grant Program, per RSA 161-F:40. within the limits of
funds appropriated, to reimburse for covered expenses incurred by the Senior Companion Program.

The purpose of this amendment is to continue providing Senior Companion services by
extending contracted services for two (2) years. The mission of the Senior Companion Program is to
prevent institutionalization and to promote Independence for vulnerable older individuals by supporting
older adults in maintaining Independent cornmuni^ living.

The Senior Companion Program provides the opportunity for low-income (200% of poverty or
less) adults over the age of fifty-five (55) to serve as companions. Cornpanions are matched with older
adults who are homebound and provide supportive services. The companions benefit from participation
in a rewarding and worthwhile experience and the older Individuals who are served, benefit from regular
companionship and reduced isolation.

The Contractor shail maintain compliance with for Senior Companion Program as established
by the National Senior Corporation for National Community Services. The contractor shall report to the
Bureau on a quarterly basis;

•  The number of visits made;

•  The numt>er of Clients served;

•  The number of Companions participating in the program; and
•  The number of hours Companions spent with clients

As referenced in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this agreement has the option to extend for up to
two (2) additional years subject to continued availability of funds and satisfactory performance of
services. The Department is satisfied with services provided by the Contractor and is In agreement with
continuation of the contracted services.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the Department will
lack the resources to maintain federal designation or receive continued funding and seniors will l:>e
without companionship support and be at risk for increased isolation. This will also impact individuals
who need long-term care, from being able maintain their independence in the community resulting in
increased utilization of higher cost institutional services.



\

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3.of 3 ,

Area served: Belknap, Grafton, Hillsborough, Merrimack. Rocklngham, Stratford and Sullivan
Counties

Source of Funds: 05-95-48-481010-9010 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF
HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES. GRANTS TO LOCALS.
VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES (0% FEDERAL. 100% GENERAL).

Respectfully submitted,

Christine L. Sa
jctor

Approved by:
ey .Meyers

Commissioner

Th» DtptiLmtnt ofH4»ltb andHumsji Sarvictf'Mistion it lo join eemmunitios and hmih**
in providing opporluniUtt for citizens to achiovo hoaJih andindopondanco.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
senior Companion Program

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the

Senior Companion Program Contract

This l" Amendmenl to the Senior Companion Program contract (hereinafter refened to as 'Amendment #1") dated
this 25'" day of July, 2018, is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Depanment") and Community Action Program Belknap and
Merrimack CounUes, Inc.(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a corporation with a place of business at 2
Industrial-Park Drive, Concord, NH 03302-1018.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Govemor and Executive Council on
October 26. 2016, (Item # 16), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS.The State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the payment schedules and terms and
conditions of the contract; arid

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1, [Revisions to General
Provisions, Paragraph 3. the State may amend the contract and may renew contract servlces for up to two (2)
years;

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement and increase the price limitation to support
continued delivery of these services upon written agreement of both parties and approval from the Governor and
Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained in the
Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions; Block 1.7, Completion Date to read: September 30, 2020.

2. Form P-37. General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation to read: $120,000

3. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.9. Contracting Officer for State Agency to read: E. Maria
Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10 State Agency Phone Number to read: 603-271-9330.

5. Delete Exhibit 8-3 and replace with Exhibit B-3, Amendment 1

6. Add Exhibit 8-4

7. Add Exhibit B-5

8. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements

Community Action Program Beikrtap artd Merrimack
Counties. 'ir>c. Amendment # 1
SS-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Pago 1 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sonlor Companion Program

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Name:

fAAKU/^j'J

CONTRACTOR NAME
Community Action Pr(

8/29/2018

Date

aw
Jeanne Agn

Executive Director

Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

on 8/29/2018 before the undersigned officer.

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature;

State of New Hampshire . County of Merrimack
personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is
signed above, and acknov/ledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above."

1/2

Si^rialurd'of'Notary Public or Justice^the Peace

Kathy L. Howard, Notary Public
Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

PBtUB. N«i
CldBmBaieB.Bi^ni Op9bp'46. ttit

Community AcOon Program Belknap a»vl Marrimack
Counties. Inc. Amendment
SS-2017-BEAS-0l-SeNlO Page 2 Of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Sonior Companion Program

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and execution.

OFFtCe OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date Nbme:

Title;
yvM
he GowI hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Govejnpr^nd Executive Council of the State

of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (dale of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Community Action Progrsm Belknap and Menimack
Countlai. Inc. Amcndmeni «1
SS-2017.BEAS-01-SENtO Pago 3 of 3
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions ,

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information." Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Staite of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic^

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 .ExhibitK Contractof inHlats
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 1 of 9 Oate(



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Harnpshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means pf the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the trartsmission of unencrypted PI. PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information' (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individuals Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
.alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as' provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is

not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.20i8 ExhI&il K Contractorinlilals^^
DHHS inlorrnstion
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notrfying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

■ 3. If DHHS notifies the' Contractor that. DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated In this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ.email lo transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and -being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

V4. Last update W.04.2018 Exhibit K ContractoflnitiauM-^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must- l>e.
installed on the End User's rhobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor wilt only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To 'this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected In
connection with the sen/ices rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and Identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. tf the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
-  sub-contractor systems); the Contractor will maintain a documented process for

securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization. or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows;

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, pa^r, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement .
supporting the sen/ices for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request .to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach. Including but not limited to; credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone' call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with ail applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Securify Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13.. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or^access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doitArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and

■  procurement information relating to vendors. >

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This Includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvDted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Laslupdate04.04.2018 ExhibilK ConlraclorInitJab MTT
DHHS Information '

Security Requirements
Page 7 of e Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable, data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
.disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved,

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will;.

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and. if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:
DHHSInformationSecurityOfrice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

C. DHHS contact for Information Security issues:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Mflirecn Ryan, D i rc c tor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED CARE SERVICES

BVREAV OF ELDERLY & ADULT SERVICES

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301-3867
603-271.9203 1-800-351-1888

Fax:603-271-4643 TDD Access: I-800.735-2964 ww.w.dhhi.ah.gov

September 21, 2016

''A

• Her Excellency,'Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
•• •and the. Honorable Council

. State';Hpuse' ..
Concord". New HamjDShire 03301

.  REQUESTED ACTION , ■

i}:' - - ^Au'thorize^.tha Department of Health and Human" Services. Division of Community Based Care
"Services,-Bureau'p^^^^^ and Adult Services to enter into a retroactive, sole source agreement with
Corrimunity Actidn.;p}.^ram Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc., {Vendor # 177203), of 2 Industrial
/Pdrk-bnve; Cbncp'r^^^^^^^ 03302 in an amount-not to exceed $60,000 to .provide Senior Companion
services; •effective October 1, 2016 through September. 30, 2018. Funds are i 00% General Funds.

■ V V'Funds are a^ in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017, and are anticipated to
■be available in Stat'e Years 2018 and 2019, upon the availability and continued appropriation.of
'funds iridHe future.-pperating budgets, with authority to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal
• Years,through the-Budget Office, if needed and justified, without further approval from the Governor and
'ExecUtiveCpyhcil.

■05-95-48^810iO-96lO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
.SERVICES,'HHS:':ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, VOLUNTEER
activities; . .

State Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total Amount

2017- . '102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $22,500 '

■  ■ 2018 ■ ' .-.102-500731 ■ Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $30,000

:2019 • 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 90080013 $ 7,500
Total $60,000 "

•t



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive due to unexpected processing delays. Procurement for the services .
was 'dejayed due to staffing uniavailabilHy; this request is sole source t:>ecause Community Action
Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc., is the only sponsor and fiscal agent for the Senior
Companion Program fn'New Hampshire, primarily funded and regulated by the Federal Corporation for
National and Community Services to provide this program. The Corporation for National and
•Community Service has selected Community Action Program Belknap and Merrimack Counties. Inc.. is
the only agency In New Hampshire to sponsor the Senior Companion Program. The Bureau of Elderly
and'Adblt Servicesis required under the Senior Volunteer Grant Program, RSA 161-F;40. within the
limits'offunds appropriated, to reimburse for covered expenses incurred by the; Senior Companion
Program.

The pur^se of this request is to obtain Senior Companion services. The mission of the Senior
Companion program is to prevent institutionaiization and promote independence for frail elderly adults,
by supporting older'adults in maintaining independent community living.

T^ ̂"nior Companion Program provides the opportunity for low-income (200% of poverty or
•less) adults over the age of frfty-five (55) to serve as compahions. Companions, are matched'with
homebpund; older adults and provide supportive services' such as companionship, assistance with
ancillary, household tasks, and socialization. The companions benefit from participation .in a rewarding
and worthwhile experience and' receive a' nontaxable stipend and- mileage reimbursement. The
homebourid .oideradults who are served benefit from regular companionship and reduced isolation.

The Program currently has volunteers placed throughout seyen (7) counties in New Hampshire!
Additibnal.fJj.ndiri'gr^^or-admihistratiye.staff, volunteer coordination management and an increase in the
number qif-volunteers, wo.uld be needed from the State of New Hampshire, and the Corporation for
National arid. Corhmunity..Service to allow for-expansion of the program'statewide. This contract vrill
se^e aporbximateiv: seventy f70> corripanions per contract year

.  •

•  ' •.'•Thq^cbntractorfwiil conduct sunreys of clients, companions and station supervisors on the
.quality of sen/ices to enisure that services are delivered satisfactorily or better. 'Additionally, the

■ contractor will be "collecting and reporting data on the 'number of volunteers in the program, number of
volunteer hbure served, number of clients and the .number of visits, in order for,the Department to
understand potential'gaps in service delivery. -

As-referenced In Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this .Agreement has the option to extend for .up to
two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available furidihg, agreement
of the parties.and further approyal of the.Govemor and Executive Council.

Should'the Governor and Executive Counicll not approve this request, the contractor's ability to
maintain'federal designation and.funding support and continue to-operate the program may be in
serious jeopardy and 'co'nipanioris and dfents may not be able to continue to. be served.



Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council
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Area .served; Belknap, Grafton, Hillsborough, Merrimack, Rockingham, Strafford and Sullivan counties

Source of Funds is 100% General Funds, Grants to Locals. Volunteer Activities.

■' 'v-
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Respectfully Submitted,

Approved by: '

Maureen Rvari Director

Jettr^y A. Meyers '

Commissioner

ThfDif^rtmsnt ofHealth and Human Scrvict's'MissJon a to join communities end families-
in pnvidinf opportunities lor citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBER F07 (venion 5/8/15)

Subject:

Notice. This oRrecrrcflt ond all of its attachrr.cnij shall bcconrc public upon subrrission to Governor and

tKcailivc Council for approval. Any inforrration that is private, confidential or proprietary rrust

be clearly identified to the ORcncy and aRrecd to in vvritinR prior to siRninjt the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Stale of New Hampshire and ihe Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name
Depar^ent of Health'and Huftian Services

1.3 Contractor'Narhe

Community Action Program Belknap and Mefrimack
Counties. Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 225-3295

1.6 Account Number:

05-95r48-481010-

90100000-102-500731

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

EficD. Borrin

I. It' Contractor Signature

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street, Concord. NH 03301

1.4 Contractor Address

2  Industrial Park Drive

Concord, NH 03302-1016

1.7 Completion Date

September 30. 2018

1.8 Price Limitation

$60,000'

1.10 State Agency telephone Number
603-271-9558

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ralph LIttiefield, Executive Director

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of New Hampshire .County of Merrimack

On 9/12/2016 . before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

.l i.i Sigriscurc of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

rSeall

-KATHY LrKOVAAD ttcOntaMic.Hiii iraijitfiln
My Cauainiatt Bgiw Odcby t*. WH

;V3.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace ~ "

■ Kalhy. L. Howard. Notary

.14 Slate Agency Signature

. ///

16 Approval by the N.H. iWianment of Administration, Division of Personnel

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

(tcJbf, Q-pffC/" oP

By. Director, On:

. 17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

On:

•VUd'-Mi,
. 18 Approval by the Governor arfi Executive Cq^ncil

8y: VJ • On:

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency Identified in block I.l ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services"). '.

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, end 5ubj«t to. the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Stale of New. • Hampshire, if
applicable,' this Agreement, and all obligations, of the parties
hercunder, shall become, effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval Is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block'
1. 14 (."Effective Date").
3.2 If the .Contractor commences (he. Services prior to the
Effective Date,:all Services performed by.the Contractor prior
to'the Effective'Date shall be performed at the sole'risk of (he
Contractor, and In the event ̂thai this Agreement does not
become effective,'the'Siate'shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must corhplete all-Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4.. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF . AGREEMENT.
• Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all, obligiations of the State hereunder, including,

. .without limitatioh, the continuance ofpayments hereundcr, are
contingent upon the availability, and continued appropriation -
of funds, and in rx) event 'shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excesis of such available appropriated
funds.. In the event of a reduction or termination of

oppropriated funds, the State shall have the ri^t to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever| and shall
have the right to.terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in (hat

■Account ere reduced or unavailable.
•  I

5. CONTRACT PRitE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified- and more particularly described in
EJ01IBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the.contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor-for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor In the
performance hereof,- end shall be the only and (he complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The'State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.'

5.3 The State reserves the right to ofTset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contrecior under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
end orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that 'persons with communication
disabilities, including, vision, -hewing and speech, cw
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the contractor. In addition, the Contractor shall
comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees' or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, .sexual oricntatiori.'or national origin and will take
afTirmative action to prevent such discrimination. .
6.3 If this Agreement is funded In any p^ by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the. United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor fur^er agrees to
permit the State or United States access, to any. of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations, and orders,
and the covenants, terms an8 conditionsofthis Agraemeni.

i PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not. hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it Is engaged in a combined effori to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is is State
employee or official, who .is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance ' of this
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Agreemenl. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer speciricd in block 1.9. or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting OfTicer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

("Event of Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the .occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may idte any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a writteri notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within; in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days ftom the date of. the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate (his Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8:2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending alt payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue'to the. Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime as the State.
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall.never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off gainst other obligations the .State may owe to
the Contractor any dajnages the Slate suffers by reason of.^y.
Eventof Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at (aw or in equity, or both. •

9.DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used, in this Agreement, the svdrd "data" shall mean all
mformaiion and things developed or obtained during (he
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of,' this
Agreement, including, but not limited.to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, - pictorial reproductions, drawings,, analyses,
graphic representations,, computer programs, computer
printouts, .notes,. I^ers, memorar)da, papers, and documents,
all whether'finished or urifmished. .

9.2 All data and any. property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the. State, and
shall be returned to the. Stale upon demartd or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The -form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

U. CONTRACtOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
• the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is-neither an agent nor

an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
-offtcers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subContracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, of otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
consent of the State. . ....

13. indemnification. The Contractor .shall defend,
indemnify and' hold harmless the State, its oncers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and empidyees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalfof any person, on account of.
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oQ the acts or omissions of the
Coritractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing..nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State,' which immunity is hereby
reserved to the Stale. This covenant in paragraph 13 shalP
survive the lerminalion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontiactor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than SI,000,000 per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed In the State of New
Hampshire.

Document Version 05/15
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting OfTicer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her succeswr, a certificate(s)
of insurance for ell InsurarKe required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificete(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ceftincate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each cenificatefs) of
insurance -shall contain a dause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION,

IS'.I By signing this' agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies end warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of NJH. RSA chapter 281-A
("Workers'. Compensaiion'.').
15.2 . - To the extent the" Contractor is subject to the
requirement,of N.H. RSA'chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain.'and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection -with activities which the person proposes to
underrake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his

. or her successor, proof -of -Workers' Compensation in the
manner - described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any

'applicable ranewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
ihcofporatetJ herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible ' for payment' of any Workers', Compensation
'premiums or for-any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or -
..any subcontractor or employee of Contraaor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire -Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreemeni

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afler any Event of Default shall
be deemed a -waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
•Default, or any subsequent Everit of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of'Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part .of (he Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of muling by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Rost OfTice addressed to the-parlies at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

IS. AMENDMENT. This •Agreement .may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of- such
amendment, waiver or discharge .by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
Stale law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State'of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the panies to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied againsi 'or
in favor of any party.

20..THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
beriefii.eny third parties end this Agreerneht shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout-the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

.22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are Incorporated herein by
reference. • .

23.. SEVERABILITY. in the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, - the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, .which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Heatth and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-20174EAS-01-SEN!O ExhlbHA

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to Alt Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with, limited English profrciency.. to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within, ten'(10) days of the
contract effective date.

1.2. The Cdntractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Harhpshire Gerteral Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and experidfture requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor agrees that the services in this contract are for low-income (200%.of
poverty'or " less) adults over the age of 55 who wo^ as volunteers providing

.  supportive sen/ices such'- as assistance witti daily living tasks, respite and
sociali^tion to homebound elderly and disabled adults who benefrt from these
-services.

1.4. The'Contractor shall provide and ensure, del'ivery of Senior Companion Sen/ices in
the counties listed in paragraph 1.4.1. below. However;' riothing in this Agreement
shall be construed to limit the ability of the Contractor to provide said services in a
town/city/county not listed in paragraph 1.4.1. below:

•  1.4.1. . The Contractor shall -provide Senior Companion Services In the following
geographic areas: Beiknap, Merrimack, Gf^on, Hillsborough, Robkingharn.
Strafford and Sullivan Counties.

1.5. -The'Contractor shall,use BEAS' E-Studio.electronic information system which is
BEAS' primary'vehidle for uploading important information concerning time-sensitive
announcements, policy- releases, administrative rule aaopuons, ana other crificdr
information. The Contractbr shall:

1.5.1. . Identify all of the key personnel who need to have' E-StudIo accounts to
ensure that information from BEAS can be shared with the necessary agency
staff, at no cost to the Contractor.

1.5.2. Ensure that E-Studio account(s) are kept current and that BEAS Is notified
when a . staff member. Is no longer working in the program so his/her account
can be terminate^.

1.6. The Contractor shall ensure all staff and volunteers and prospective staff and
• volunteers:

. 1.6.1. ■ Pursuant to RSA 161-F;49, complete a BEAS State Registry check t>efore the
staff rT>emi^r or Companioii begins providing direct services to Clients. , . •

1.6.2. Undergo a New Hampshire Criminal Records Backgrourid check. ,

CoRVT^ty Action ProgrBm
Sdknt^M^mscfc Counties. Inc.- £xNbil A. Contractor Initiala.
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New Hampshire Department of Heaith and Human Services
^nlor Companion Program
S&-2017-BEAS-01-SENIO Exhibit A

2. Scope of Services

The Contractor shall provide Senior Companion Services as follows;

2.1. Maintain designation by the Corporation for National and Community .Sen/ice
(Corporation) established under the National and Comrnunity Service Trust Act of
1993 to administer the Senior Companion Services Program (Program).

2.2. Link low-income seniors, referred to as Companions, to Clients who are socially
isolated due to physical or ernotional ffailtles, as follows:

"2,2.1. Provide services in a manner that improves the quality of life for both
Companions and Clients;

2.2.2. Design the Companion's visits so as to encourage Independence of the Client
' by providing assistance with daily living tasks, respite, and socialization;

2.2.3. Assign each Companion a minimum of two (2) Clients: • . ^

2.2.4. Require each Companion to provide a minimum of fifteen (15) hours of service
per week, as assigned by the Contractor;

2.2.5. Provide each Companion with'a stipend as established by CPR Title 45.
•Subtitle B. Chapter XXV. Part 2551, Subparts A-L;

2.2:6. Erasure that Companions participate' in educational programs as well as
supervisory meetings with program supervisors, as needed;

2.2.7. Ensure that Clients not incur any fees for services provided through the
.  Program; . . ..

2.2.8. Comply with specific program requirernents and complete specrfic program
measures and reporting requirements as required by CFR Title 45. Subtitle 8.
Chapter XXV. Part 2551, Subparts A-L;

2.2.9. Maintain the designated number of volunteer station agencies as specified
under CFR Title 45, Subtitle B, Chapter XXV. Part 2551, Subparts A-L: and

2.2:10. Provide direct supervision to Companions and assign the placement of
Cornpanions and ongoing, services to Ciients.

3. Service Compliance Requirements

3.1. The Contractor shall comply with the requirements as defined in CFR, Title 45,
Subtitle B. Chapter XXV, Part 2551, Subparts A-L, governing the management and
operation of the Senior Companion Program".

4. Perforrnance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall comply with the following requirements and reporting
"requirements:

4.1.1. Cpmpjetion of specific program measures and reporting, requirements as
required by CFR Title 45. Subtitle B, Chapter XXV. Part 2551, Subparts A-L.

4.T.2. Maintain the designatedPumber of volunteer station agencies specified under
CFR Title 45. Subtitle B. Chapter XXV, Part 2551. Subparts A-L.

Communiry Action Progrem
eetknap-^irimocK Countlei. Inc. ExhibHA Cof^dor Inlllab
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New Ham^hlre Department of HeaKh and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017<BEAS-01-SENIO ExhibHA

4.1.3. Report the number of visits, individuals being visited, and the numljer of
Companions participating in the Program to the Department.

4.1.4. Conduct Annual Surveys of Clients, Companions and Station Supervisors to
indicate levels of satisfaction with the Program.

5. Reporting Requirements/Deliverables

5.1. Privacy and Security of Client Information

The Department is the designated owmer of all data and shall approve all access to that
data. The Contractor shall not have ownership of State data at any time. The Contractor

- shall be In compliance with privacy policies established by governmental agencies or. by
state or federal law.. Privacy policy statements rhay be developed and amended from-time to
time by the State and will appropriately displayed on the State portal. The Contractor
shall jprovide sufficient security to protect the State and Department data in network, transit.

' storage and cache. In the event of breach, the Contractor shall notify the Department within
one day frorri,the,date of breach.

5.2. Notice of Failure to Meet Service Obligations

5.2.1. In the event that the Contractor, for.any reason. Is unable to meet any service
obligations prior to the completion date, the Contractor shall give at least a
ninety (90) day prior written notice addressed to the Bureau Director; Bureau
of Elderly and Adult Services, of such inability to meet service obligations.

5.2.2. ■ Examples of failure to meet service obligations may include, but are not limited
to:

5.2.2.1. : Reducing hours of operation

5.2.2.2. Changing a geographic service area

5.2.2.3. Closing or openif>g a site

5.2.3. ' The written notification shall include the following:

5.24i4,—Tho-reasons-fof-tbe-inabliity-to.deliver-6ervicesi :

5.2.3.2. How service recipients and the community will be impacted rfv the
Contractor is unable to provide services;

5.2.3.3. How service recipierits and the community will be notified; and

5.2.3.4. The Contractor's plan to transition Companions and/or Clients into other
services or refer the Companions and/or Clients to other agencies.

5.2.4. The Contractor shall maintain a plan.that addresses the present and future
heeds of Companion and/or Clients receiving serviceis in the event that;

5.2.4.1. Service(s) are terminated or planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract:

5.2.4.2. The contract is terminated or is planned to be terminated prior to the
termination date of the contract by the Contractor or the Department;'

5.2.4.3. The Contractor terminates a service or services for any reason; '.

•  5.2.4.4. The Contractor cannot carry out all or a portion of the services terms or
conditions outlined In the contract or sub-contracts.

Commurfty Acflon Proflfem. ' • . A '
Beiknap-hterrtmsck Countlet. Inc. ExhlbHA Cortfractof mitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS<O1-SENIO ( Exhibit A

5.3. Transition Process

5.3.1. The Contractor shall have a transition process for Companions and/or Clients
in the event that they may be transitioned between Department-contracted

.  providers and shall submit their written transition process to the Department
within thirty (30) days of approval of the Contract Agreement. The process
shall ensure;

5.3.1.1. (Jninterrupted delivery of services for Companions and/or Clients;

5.3.1.2. A method of notifying Companions and/or Clients .and/or the corhmunity
about the transition.'

5.3.1.3. . A staff member shall be available to address questions about the
.  transition.

5.4. Contract Monitoring

5.4.1. The Contractor shall;

5.4.1.1. Ensure .the Department has access sufficient for monitoring of "contract
compliance requirements as" Identified in 0MB Circular A-133. •

6.4.1.2. Ensure,the Department Is provided with access that includes, but Is not
limited to;

-  5.5.T2.1.1 Data;

'5.5.1.2.1.2 Financial records;

5.5.1.2.1.3' Scheduled access to Contractor work sites/tocatlons/work spaces
and associated facilities;

5.5.1.2.1.4 Unannounced access to Contractor work sites/Iocations/vwrk

spaces and.associated facilities;

-5.5,1.2.1.5 Scheduled phone access to Contractor princlpails and staff; and

-5.5.1.2.1.6 . Timely unscheduled phone response by Contractor principals and
staff.

5.5. Quarterly Reports

The Contractor shall, on a.quarterly basis, provide copies of program reports and statistics,
to the Department Including, but hot limited to;

5.5.1. The number of visits made;

5.5.2. The number of Clients-being visited;

^  5.5.3. The number of Companions participating in the program; and

6.5.4.- The number of hours Companions spend with Clients.

5.6. Program Plans

The Contractor.shall submit the following to the Department within thirty (30) days of
approval of the Contract Agreement;

•  - 5.6.1. Qualifications for the Senior Companion Program as established by the
Corporation;

Commurfty AcOon Pi^fam - yO yO
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Senior Companion Program
SS-2017-BEAS-01^ENIO Exhibit A

5.6.2. Program Measures arid Reporting Requirements as established by the
Corporation: /

5.6.3. Staffing Plan:

5.6.4. Transitloh plan;

5.6.5. Quality Assurance Plan and describe your method/process for obtaining
quality satisfaction data from volunteers and other recipients of services;

5.6.6. Sample of the Annual Survey used to determine the program satisfaction;

5.6.7. Plan for Equal Access to Services;

5.6.8. Termination Plan/Assurance; and

5.6.9. Consumer Grievance Process.

Comntunity Adlon Proorsm
Beftnap-MefilmBt* Courtles. Inc. EkNM A ' Contractof Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Senrlces
Senior Companion Program

s$.20i7«EA$^i^ENio Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The Department shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price limitation on
Form P-37. Block 1.8, General Provisions, for the sen/ices provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

•2. The funding source for this Contract is 100% General Funds.

3. The Contractor shall, comply with the necessary steps established by the Department for
making payments to veridors using Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT).

4. The Department may require certain payments returned to the Slate rf:

4.1. The final reconciliation of the payments made by the Department under this contract
. show that the payments exceed the actual uriits served;

•'4.2., Services are not being provided In accordance with the requirements and scope of
services outlined in Exhibit A; or ,

4.3. Should the Oejjartment choose to execute the right to terminate the contract as stated
in Exhibit G-1, Additional Special Provisions.

5. Review of the State Disallowance of Costs; At any time during the performance of the
services, and upon receipt of required' reports, or Contractor Site Review Reports, the
Department may review costs incurred by the Contractor and all payments made to date.
Upon.such review, the Department shall disallow any costs incurred that are determined'to
not be allowable or are determined to be for services 1o ineligible clients and shall, bywhtten
notice specifying the disallowed costs. Inform the contractor of any such disallowance. If the
Department disallows costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay

.  such costs.

6.. Payment for Services shall be made as follows:

6.1. The Contractor shall file a monthly, completed and signed Senior Companion Invoice
with the Department.

6.2. Expenses shall be reported for reimbursement by budget line item in Exhibits 8-1
through B-3.

6.3. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each Invoice submitted pursuant to this Agreement.

Community Action Progrnm /T
Beknsp-^fTlmacfc Counties.' inc. GjtfUWl B Contracta Inttials % •
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sorvlces
Senior Companion Progrem

ss-20i7-BEA&«i-sENio Exhibit B

6.4. invoices identified in Section 4.1 shall be submitted to;

Department of Health and Human Services

Shawn Martin

Financial Management

Bureau of Elderly and AduH Services

129 Pleasant Street, Brown Building

Concord. NH 03301

Shawn.Martin@dhhs.nh.Qbv

7. A final payrhent request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days after the end of the
Contract.

8. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or. In part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law; rule, or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services-have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Contract. ^ .

9. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget and withiri the price limitation, can li>e made by written
agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Govemor and

, Executive Council.

•  1

Community Action Progrem ' - '
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Eihlbtt B-imUDGET

October t, 2016 • Jut>» 30, 2017

Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services '
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Name: Communltv Action Proflfam BelknaD-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

. Budoat Reouest for: Senior Companion Proaram

Budaet Period: October 1, 2016 throuQh Jurw 30, 2017 .

1. TotarSalarv/Waoes S • 6.517.00 s •$ e.517.00

2. Emolovee Benefits i ' $  M.992.00 $ S  1.992.00

3. ConsuRants $ s s

4. EauipmenL- $ s s

Rental $ $ s  • -

Reoair and Maintenance' $ $■ $

- Purchase/Det>reciation $ $ . , • $

5. SuDoiies: $ s s

Educational-- $ s $
Lab S s s

Pharmacv $ s s  • •

Medical s s $  - •

Office: s $ $  - - ■

6. Travel $ s $

7, Occuoancv $ s

fl Current Emenses s $ s

Telephone $ s $

Poataoe $ s s

' Subscriplions $ S  ■

Audit and Lecal s s $

Insurance s s $

Board Ewenses s $

9. Software $ $ $

10. MarketinQ/Communications . . $ s s

11. Staff Education and Trelnina $ s $

12. Subcontracta/Aarecmonts $ $ J  .

13. Other (soecificdeteits mendatorv): S s s

Volunteer Travel" S  11.991.00 s S  11.991.00

$ s s  • - •
• $ s - $

TOTAL $  22,600.00 1 S S  22,600.00

EibibilB.!
fift 1 of I
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Exhibit B-2/BUD0ET

July 1, 2017-Juii* 30. 2018

Now Hampshtro Oopartment of Hoaltti and Human Servlcoo
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Namo: Communltv Action Program Belknap'Morrfanack Countlea. Inc.

Budgat Roquaat for Sanlor Companion Program ;

Budgot Period: July 1. 2017 through Juna 30. 2018

iMt-

1. Total Salarv/W^es

2. Emptovoe Bertefita

3. Consultants.

A. Equipment

Rental

Rapoff end Maintenance

.  Pufchase/Dopradatlon

5. Supplies:

Educational .

Lab

PhannacY

Medicfil

Offics

6. Travel

7. Occupancy

fl—Curreot-E^penaea-

Tele phone

■Poatage.
Sufaacriptions
Audrtand Legal
Insurance

• Board Expenses
9. Soflwara
10. Marketind/Communicationa
11. Staff Education and Training
12. Subcontracta/Agreements
13. Other (specific details mandatory):
iVotunteer Travel

TOTAL

1.357.00
2.654.00

15,969.00

30,000.00 t

11.357.00
2.654.00

15.969.00

30.000.00
Indirect Aa A Percent of Direct 0.0%

eibiM(>3
Page i afI

Contracton InillBis:Date:Z^i^^(5>



Exhibit B.3/BUDGET

July 1, 2018 - S«pt«mb«r 30, 2016

Now Hampshire Dopartment of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Contractor Namei Community Action Proflram Belknap^Marrimacli Coundea, inc.

Budget Raqiieat for: Senior Companion Proqram 1

Budaet Period: Juty 1. 2016 through Soptomber 30. 2018
1

1, Total Salarv/Waoea $  2.839.00 S  2.839.00

2. Eniolovee Benertts S  664.00 $  664.00

3. Consultants $ $  ■ -

4. Eouioment: $*•" $ $.

Rental $ $ $

Repair and Maintenance $ S  '

Purchase/Depreciation s $ $

5. Supplies: $  • $ • ' • ■ 1

Educational $ $ s

Lab s $ $

• Pharmacy . $ $  •

Medical - s $ $

Office. s $

6, Travel •$ s

7. Occuoancv $ s s

8. Current Emnses • $ ^ . $

Telephone ■ % $

Postaoe $ J  -

Subscriptions $ $ ■$ • . •
Audit and Leoai $ $ $
iruurance $ $ s
Board E^mraes s $ s

9. Software s s
10. MaHtetJnatCommunicabons s $
11. Staff Education and Tralnino - $ $
12. Subcontracta/Aareements $

13. Other (specific details mandalorv): $  - . . - $  • -
Volunteer Travel S  3.997.00 5 $  3.997.00

$ $ $
$ $ $

TOTAL %  7,600.00 S (  7.500.00 1
Indlroct As A Percent of Direct 0%

EibibilB-3
Page I or I
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New Hempshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for seiviccs provided to eligible
individuals and. in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and. procedures.

2. Tlrna and Mannar of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on formis provhded by
the Department for that purpose end shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor .
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility deterrtiihation and such other information as the

.  Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regardir^ eligibility determinations that the Department may'request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
Individuate declar^ ir^eligibie have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants arxt agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill but
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be infonned of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it.ls a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a p^ment, gratuity or,offer of employment on behalf of the. Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence, the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contraict or.sub-agreement if it is
determined th^ payments, gratuities or.offers of employmenl of any kirxJ were offered or received by
any officials.-officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood arid agreed by the parties
hereto, that ho payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Cor^trador for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on wrhich the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a deterrnination that the individual is'eligible'for such services.

7. Condftiona of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a.rate
which ®*ceedsJhe amounts reaMrwble and nacessary. tq assure the quali^, of such service,, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to iheligibie iridividuals.or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the FIrral
E)^nditure Report hereunder. the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse rtems ofexpense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or In excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to iheligibie individuals -
Of other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Rer>egotiate the rates for payrnent hereurider. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in •

excess of costs;

. Exfibit C - Special Provisioftt Contraclor InttiaU,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
pennltted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to -
relmtjurse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services

•  provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS; MAINTENANCE. RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records; In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants ar^ agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records; t^ks. records, documents end other data evidericir>g artd reflecting ell costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, Mid records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to'the Department, and

'  to jndude, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, arid .original evidence of costs such as
.  purchase 'requlsKions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of

in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department. ' ' .

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services-during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to (he Department to obtain
payment for such services.

' 8.3. M^ical Records; Where appropriate and as presaibed by the Department r^ulatio'ns, the
.Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor ishall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordarice with the provision of
Office of Management'and Budget Circular A-i 33. "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. '
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department.'the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated represent^h/es shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transaipts.

9.2. Audit LiabilKies: In addition to and.not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to wtiich exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connecliori with the performance of the services and the Contract shall-be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to stale laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of su<^ information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiri^ such infoirnation In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to'the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administratton of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with

-  respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written conserit of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhblt C - Special ProvtsJone Contreciof Irrtlab
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
-  times If requested by the Department.

11. V ' Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs end non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such'other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Departnhent to
justify the rate of payment.hereunder; Such Financial Reports shall'be submitted on.the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submined within thihy (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Fir\ai Report shall be in a form salisfectory-lo ttw Depertrnent and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other infonnatipn requir^ by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be'performed after the end of the term of this Contract end/or.

'  survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
, Final Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow'any. expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the ariiount of such ■
expenses as. are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the perfonrtance of the services of the Contract shall Include the-following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New-Hampshire, Departrr^ent of Health and Human Services, with-funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire end/or such other funding sources'as were available or

.  required, e.g.. the United States Depar^ent of Health end Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchas^ under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyrigtit ownership for any and all original rnaterials

~  produced, including, but not limited to, brc^ures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or re^rts. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials prixjuced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. O^ration of Facilities: Compliance with Lavrs and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities .
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply, with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Office'r or officers
pursuant to laWs which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect .to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services.at such facility. If any governn>entBl license or
permit shall.be requlr^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the C^ntractpr^will procure said license or permit, and vrill at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of e^h such licen^ or {^rmrt. In connection vrith the foregoing requirements, the

' Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract tfte facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations,' and requirements of the State Office of thel^ire Marshal and

.. the local ftre' protection agency, and shall be iri conformance with local building end zoning codes, by
laws and regulations. '.

16. Equal Employment.Opportunlty Plan (EEQP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has

* received a single award of $500,000 or more; If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will mainlein a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educationdt institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoi/about/ocr/pdfs/ceil.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13156, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin

• discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
ccmpliartce with the Omnibus Crime Control artd Safe Streets Act of 1966 end Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of '1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whlstteblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all.contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 46
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Wkistleblower Rights and Reouirement Jo Inform Employees of
WHiSTLEBLOwrER,Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whlstleblower rights
.  . arid remedi^ in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistlebloWer protections established at

41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for.Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub, L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908;

(b) The Coniractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predorhinant language of the worWorce.
of ̂ ployee whlstleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall.insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c)..in ail
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: OHMS recognizes that the Contractor niay choose to use sut>contractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health carei services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
8ubcontr8ctir>g. the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This;ls accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities.and reporting-,
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or.imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

. conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those cohditiohs.

. When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall'do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activitios, before del^eting

the function

19.2. - Have a written agreement with, the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities ar>d how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. ' Monitor .the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exnibit C - Spedal Provisions Contractor tnillals,
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule Identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at Its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
lake corrective action.

DEFINITIONS

As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federallav/s, regulations, rules and.orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is

entitled Tinancial Management 'Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the St^e of NH to receive funds.i

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuate by the Contractor in accordance wKh the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified In ̂ hibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE l_AW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference Shalt be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amerxfed or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall niean that document prepared by the NH Department of Admintetralive . -.
Services containing a compilatioh of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
' Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541 -A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulation's promulgated (hereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this-
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Eihibtt C - special Frovhions Contractor Initiab.
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the Genera) Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

.  4.. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithslanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriatton or availability of funds,
including any subsequent chariges to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
er)y state or federal legislative'or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part.. In no event shall the
Slate be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In

. the event of a reduction,' termination or modification of appr^riated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds bec'orrie available, K ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce,' terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon g'lving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The .State shall-rwl be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Accouht(s) ideritified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by addir>g the
following language; >

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exiercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the'event of early termination, the Contractor shall," within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services urvjer the

•  • Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
,  receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

•10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any Information or
data.requested by the State relat^ to the termination of the Agreement and Tranisition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested. • - • • •

10.4 In the event that services.under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Ag wment are tra'nsitioned to having services delivered by another entity
Including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a proceSiS for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor sftall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected-individuals
about the transitton. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3. - The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for, up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.

ExNbil C-1 - Revtslonj to Stendard Provtalons ConlrecJor Initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDiNG DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Wortcplace Act of 1980 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 el seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT of'AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wort<placeAct of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part H of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
216€1-21691)i and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
conlractdrs). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free worVplace. Section 3017.630(c) of,the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one .certrfication to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each-grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out isielqw Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of.the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or govemment wide suspension or debarment., Contractors using this form should
send It to: • . '

S

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301;6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlav«^ul manufacture, distribution.

dis(^nsing, possessior} or use of a controlled substance is'prohibited in the grantee's
woi^place and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; ^ ~~

-  TZ- Establishing en ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform emplovees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free worltplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistarKe programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3.- Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statern.ent required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant,,the ernplpyee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction:

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving .actual notice of such conviction.
-Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D-CoftWcation fegardlng.Drug Free Cent,-ador Initials
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification numl>er(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
' subparagreph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
;  1.6.1: Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or •
'  rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,

law enforcement, or other appropriate, agency.
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through

implementation of'paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the $tte(s) for the performance of work dorve In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, cl^, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identifted here.

Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016 .
Date Name: RalplPLittlef

Executive Director

■ ' D - Certification reeanfing Omg Free Conlrador Initials.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identlffed In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, .and
31 U.S.C. 1352i-and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 .of-the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS '

US;OEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION -CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (mdicate epplicabie program covered);;
•Temporary Assistance'to Ne^y Families under Title IV-A
•ChiU Support Enforcement Program under .Title IV-0 \
•Social Services'Block Grant Program under Tftle XX,
•Medicaid PrografTi under Title XIX • , . i
•CommufSrty .Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block.Grant.under Title IV ■

The undersigned certifies, to the t>est of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer orerhployee.of any agency, a Member
of Congress,'ah officer or employee of Congress, or an employee.cf a.Meml^r of Congress in \
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation,.rehei«^t'amendment, or .
modification of any Federal contract, grant,- loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-granle'e Of sub-contractor). , ' ,

2. If ariy fuhds^ofher than Federal appropriated funds have twen paid or will be paid to any person for
,  influencing or attemptinig to,influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in.conhectlon with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific rriehtion sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Plsciosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in a<xofdance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall reqiJlre that the language of this certrficatioh be included in the award" " '
dpcurnent for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all.sub-recipients shall certify and disdose accordingly.

This certification[^is. a rnaterial. representation of. fact upon which reliance was placed when this, transaction
was made or entered into. Sutimission of this certification is a prerequisite for makir^ or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section .1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than (10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
eachisuchfailure. ;

" . ' Contractor Name:
Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

9/12/2016 • ' -

Date : • Name;\ Ra^h LitUefielc
Title: Executive Director

'■ Exhit>tt E - Cfntdcation Regarding Lobbying Contractor imualt '
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS

The Conlraclor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions'agreesto comply wilh the provisions of
Executive Offtce of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;!

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective phmary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

' 2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The.certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

' participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of faci'upon which reliance vras placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addKion to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The.prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom.this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has b^ome erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances. • /'

5. The terms 'covered transaction," 'debarred,' "suspended," 'ineligible,' 'lower tier covered
transaction,* 'participant,* 'person,* 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,* 'pf<^osal.' and
'voluntarily excluded,* as used in this clause, have the rheanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

' 6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the.
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered,
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded

.  from participation iri this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
cjause trtied "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In ail solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

B. A participant in.a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower.tier covered transaction that it-is not detiarred, suspended, ineligible, or.lnvoluntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Ks principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

' 9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certcfication required by this clause. The knowledge and

EiMbil F-Certification Reyarding Oebarmenl. Suspenjion Contradof initisls
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Informalion of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealirigs.

10. Except for transactions.'authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions. If a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction; in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

J

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that It and Its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agericy;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection wHh.obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes, or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of •
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are npl presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal,' State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a .three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more .public
transactions (Federal, State or-local) terminated for cause or defaufl.

■ 12. .Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
■ certircation, such pros^ctive participant shall attsch an explanation to this proposal tcontract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13.. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined in 45 CFR.Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowl^ge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared indigible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, stxrh

prospective particlpanfshaii attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

'14~The prosp^tiw Ibweriler participant'further agTew'by subrmtt'in^thi^pr'o^Tanconh^irihVtlt'w^^
include this clause entitled 'Certificdtion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility. and
Voluntary Exclusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification in all lower tier covered'
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Communiry Aciion Program Belknap'-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016

Date Name: Nftalph Litilefieli ̂
Title: Executive Director

EmiM f - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Irrfliah
And Other Resporoibitlty Matters « . .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH^ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractof identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections ,1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certircation;

Contractor will comply; and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscriminatlon' requirements, which rnay include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d} wh'ch prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this slatute.from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency'Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obllgatiohs of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
ber^efits, on the'basis of race, color, religion; national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equ^
Employment Op^rtunity Plan requirerrients;
- the Civil Rights Act,of 19W (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
awistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program oractlvlty):

- the.Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial •
-assistance ffom discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefrts, In any program or activity;, ■

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits
discrimination ar>d ensures equal opportunity for persons wKh disabilities in employment, State and local
govemmerrt services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

-the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the'basis,of sex In federally assisted education programs;
- the Age.Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-OJJDP Grant Programs); 28C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimlnation; Equal Employment Opportunity- Policies
ar>d Procedures): Executive Order No. 13279 (^ual protection of the laws for faith-basod and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations; i

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38,(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal .Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239. enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for .
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

6Q7/14

ExtitbH G

Conlraclof Initials
C»tl<«*enalCo«npHwx»«rW<i'>aif»Twna owt^rtna la f NanJiaVrtnMian ftyui Trmnwn

iM prcMOon*

4^
10/21/14 PagetolZ Data



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services arid
to the Department of Heatth and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
•representative as identified in Sections'1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the followino
certification: ^

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Community Action Program Belknap-Merrimack Counties. Inc.

9/12/2016

-  Name: ) RaljSrLitUcfiflj
Title: Executive Director -

607/14
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New Hampehire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or.
contracted for byan entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the sen/ices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by '
M^ica're or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a dvil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day.and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identrfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified, in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions, to execute the following
certrfication:'

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
' - with ail applicable provisions of Public Law 103-2i27. Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act .of 1994.

Contractor Name:

.  ■ Community Action Program Bellcnap-Merrlmack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016 ■
Date- . - Name:>^alphLilUericid^

Executive Director

Ejtfilbit H - CortJflcatlon Regardinfl Contractor InlUab •
£nv(ronrnen(al Tobacco Srhoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PQRTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and -
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of individually identifiable Health Infomiatlon. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 1W applicable to busiriess associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate"shall mean the Contractor arid subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) \ ■ Deflnltlonis.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b.- "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of title 45, Code
■ of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered £01117* has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. 'Designated Record Siet" shall have the same meaning as the'term 'designated record set"
in'45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aagreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in "45 CFR
• Section 164.501.

f- 'Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
•in 45 CFR Section 164.501. . - . ^

g. "HITECH A^ means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act; TitleXlll. Subtitle 0. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009. ' • '

h. "HIPAA? means the Health Insurance Porlabillty and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of. IrKjividualiy Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Paris 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the sarne rrieaning as the term 'individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall, include a person who qualifies as a perisonal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Informatioii at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Departrnent of Health and Human Services.

'Protected Health Information* shall have the same meaning as the term 'protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103. limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. j

Exhibit I Contradof inlUala
Health Insurance Portability Act
Business Assodaie Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. 'Reouired bv Lav/* shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary'shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
' his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule"" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
■  Health Informatipn at 45 CFR Part 1M. Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health informabon' means protected health Information that is not-
'secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards deveiopir>g organization that is accredited by the Americari National Starxjards
iristitute.

p. Other DefihKioris - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
■ established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160, i62 and 164, as arhended from time to time, and the
HITECH ■■

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a: ' Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protect^ Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transrhit
PHI in any manner that would constitute'a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. ' . For the pro^r management and administration of the Business Associate; .

-  Ml, ' As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
' III. For-data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

0. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any. such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that.such PHI will.be held confidentially and
used or.further disclosed only' as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification .,
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a.
request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered .Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to'seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Business

4sSr2014 ~ - ExNbKI Contr»dorlnltJ8l3
Hestth irtsurtnce Portability Act
Businesa A&soclate ̂ reemeni
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhlbh I

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. •

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additionaf restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate

•  shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3). ObllQatlona and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured •
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the'
protected health informatidn of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware ofany of'the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to; . •

0  The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification:

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
■ disclosure was made; - ,

o. yVhether the protected-health Information was actually acquired or viewed ■
0 the extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been •

mrtlgated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the

Covered Entity.

c.. The Busir>ess Associatie shall comply v/ith all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notlficatton Rule.

d. Business Assodate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of P-Hl received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and •
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's Intend^ business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 ExWWll ConVadorlniUals,
, Health Insurance PoftaWlily Ad

Business Assodate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records; books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use arxl disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Busir>ess'Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business'Associate shall provide.access to PHI in a Deslgriated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

'  I

h. Wrthin ter|.(10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendmenit of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and Incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fuifiii its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. .

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make ayailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to. amendment of. or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if foiwarding the

,  individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business'Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business.days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by. Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the iBusiness Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise.agreed to in
the Agreement. Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for so long as Business

3/2014 ExNblll Contractor Initiab,
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. -Covered Entity shall hotify Business Associate of any changes or iimrtation<s) in its
•Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR.Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or. disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes In. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals v^ose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section1S4.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of ■

.  PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
defermines that neithisr termination nor cure is. feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary,

(6) Miscellaneous

3- Definitions and Regulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from tirhe to time: A reference In.the Agreement, as amended to Include this Exhibit I. to
a. Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
nec^sary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

■  Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowfedges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity. .

ft- Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreemerit shall be resolved
to permit Covert Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. . ^

E*WWt I Contractor InMala ^
Health InsursiKO Portability Act
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Exhibit I

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held Invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival.. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense ar>d Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Community Action Program
•  ̂ Belknap-Merrimack Counties, Inc.

The State Name of the Contractor

Signature of rizied Representative

l^cxn
Repress

Signatt/re of Authdh tative.

Ralph Littlefield .

Name of Authorized RepresentativeName of Authorized Representative

O^ft'rfio-P Hui/ifan5^0f<^cs' Executive Director
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date
y/V/L 9/12/2016

Date

3/2014 EzN&ill

Health Inaunnce Portability Act
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New Hampshire Department of KeaHh and Human Services
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CERTinCATlON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA^ COMPUANCE

%

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grarits of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

•  In accordarKe with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
sut^ward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity '
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
6. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Prirtciple place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment. end those
.  revenues are greater than $2SM annually and

10.2.- Compensation information is not already available through reportir>g to the SEC.'

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
•The Cof)tractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the-Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170.(Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees •
to have the Contractor's representative, as kJenlified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification;
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services jand to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name;

Ccmmunity Action Program Belknap-Mcrrimack Counties, Inc.

9/12/2016

Date Name:> R^ph LittlAtVld
Title; Executive Director

,  ExniM J - CertincaUon Ragardlng me FederftJ FurWIng Cofitradof Iniliaia jP
Accoonlabillty Arti Tfanspamncy Act (FFATA) Compliance y
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FORMA ..

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Prosrisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 07-399-7504

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal-year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 60 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S: federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to 02 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to 02 above is YES, please answer the following; - '

3.' Does the put)lic have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your .
business or organization .through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 7^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
•1986?

NO. YES

If the answer to 03 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to 03 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most hlgt^ compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

N^e:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

Amount:

Amount:

CUQHHSn 10713
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